
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
 

 

  
 DATE: 8 March 2016 
 MY REF: MIS/CCouncil 
 PLEASE ASK FOR: Mr. M. I. Seedat 
 DIRECT DIALLING: (0116) 305 6037 
 E-MAIL: mo.seedat@leics.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
I summon you to the MEETING of the LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL to be held at 
COUNTY HALL, GLENFIELD on WEDNESDAY, 16 MARCH 2016 at 2.30 p.m. for the 
transaction of the business set out in the agenda below.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1.  
  

Chairman's Announcements.  
 

 

2.  
  

To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 17 
February 2016.  
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

3.  
  

To receive declarations by members of interests in respect of 
items on this agenda.  
 

 

4.  
  

To answer questions asked under Standing Order 7(1)(2) and (5).  
 

 

5.  
  

To receive position statements under Standing Order 8.  
 

 

To consider reports of the Cabinet, Scrutiny Commission, Scrutiny 
Committees and other bodies: 
 
6.  
  

Report of the Employment Committee.  
 

 

 (a) Pay Policy Statement 2016/17.  (Pages 11 - 24) 
  

 
 

 



 
 
 

7.  
  

To consider the following notice/s of motion:  
 

 

 (a) Membership of the European Union - Mr. R. Sharp CC   
 (1) That this Council notes: 

 
a. The importance of the forthcoming Referendum on 

UK membership of the European Union to every 
resident , business and organisation in 
Leicestershire; 
 

b. That EU Membership has given vital rights to British 
workers and the EU’s rules provide important 
protection to consumers, workers and the 
environment;   

 
c. That there are direct benefits to Leicestershire’s 

communities of EU membership including EU 
funding which supports economic growth and 
regeneration across the county; for example the 
£89m indicative allocation of EU funds to support 
economic and social programmes across the 
Leicester and Leicestershire economic area 
2014/20. 

  
(2) That this Council believes it is in the best interests of 

residents, business and the whole county of Leicestershire 
for the UK to remain a member of the European Union. 

 

 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
HELD AT COUNTY HALL, GLENFIELD ON WEDNESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 

2016 

 

PRESENT 

Mr. E. D. Snartt CC (in the Chair) 

 
Mr. I. E. G. Bentley CC, Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC, Mr. R. Blunt CC, Mr. G. A. Boulter CC, 
Mr. S. L. Bray CC, Mrs. R. Camamile CC, Mr. M. H. Charlesworth CC, 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC, Mrs. J. A. Dickinson CC, Dr. T. Eynon CC, 
Dr. R. K. A. Feltham CC, Mrs. J. Fox CC, Mr. S. J. Galton CC, Mr. D. A. Gamble CC, 
Mr. S. J. Hampson CC, Mr. G. A. Hart CC, Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC, 
Mr. Max Hunt CC, Mr. D. Jennings CC, Mr. J. Kaufman CC, Mr. A. M. Kershaw CC, 
Ms. K. J. Knaggs CC, Mr. P. G. Lewis CC, Mr. W. Liquorish JP CC, 
Mrs. H. E. Loydall CC, Mr. K. W. P. Lynch CC, Mr. M. T. Mullaney CC, 
Ms. Betty Newton CC, Mr. L. J. P. O'Shea CC, Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC, 
Mr. P. C. Osborne CC, Mr. I. D. Ould CC, Mrs. R. Page CC, Mr. B. L. Pain CC, 
Mr. A. E. Pearson CC, Mr. T. J. Pendleton CC, Mrs. P. Posnett CC, 
Mrs. C. M. Radford CC, Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC, Mr. T. J. Richardson CC, 
Mrs. J. Richards CC, Mr. N. J. Rushton CC, Mr. R. Sharp CC, Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC, 
Mr. R. J. Shepherd CC, Mr. D. A. Sprason CC, Mr. E. F. White CC, 
Miss. H. Worman CC, Mr. M. B. Wyatt CC and Mr. L. E. Yates CC 
 

43. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Mr Roger Begy OBE 
 
It was with great regret that the Chairman reported the death of Mr Roger 
Begy who had died on 1st February, aged 72. 
 
Although Roger did not serve on the County Council many members present 
had known and worked with him in his capacity as Leader of Rutland County 
Council and as Rutland’s representative on various partnership bodies. 
 
Roger had played a key role in improving and developing relationships 
between the County Council and Rutland Council.  He would be greatly 
missed. 
 
A memorial service for Roger would be held in Oakham on Thursday, 17th 
March. 
 
Those present joined the Chairman in standing in silent tribute to the memory 
of Mr Roger Begy. 
 
Mr Geoff Welsh and Mr David Knaggs 
 
The Chairman reported that Geoff Welsh and David Knaggs had been unwell 
and had been admitted to hospital. 
 
Members joined the Chairman in extending best wishes to both for a speedy 
recovery. 

Agenda Item 23



 
Stonewall Workforce Equality Index 2016 
 
The Stonewall Workforce Equality Index ranks organisations across the UK 
for their efforts to create an inclusive workplace for their lesbian, gay and 
bisexual employees. 
 
The Chairman reported that Leicestershire County Council had achieved its 
highest ever placing at 7th place in the country, and was the top local 
authority.  It was also reported that the County Council had been joined in the 
top 100 by two other county organisations - Leicestershire Police and De 
Montfort University. 
 
This had been a tremendous achievement and the Chairman was sure all 
members were rightly proud of it. 
 
Mr Andrew James 
 
The Chairman reminded members that this would be the last Council meeting 
before Andrew James retired. 
 
Andrew had been with the County Council since February 1979 when he 
joined as Senior Assistant Solicitor. 
 
Andrew had over the years been involved in advising members on a range of 
issues but would always be remembered and respected for his knowledge 
and expertise on planning and highways matters. 
 
Those present joined the Chairman in placing on record their appreciation to 
Andrew for his hard work, professionalism and integrity and wished Andrew 
well for a long and happy retirement.   
 
Visitors 
 
The Chairman welcomed to the meeting all visitors and guests of members 
and anyone who was viewing the meeting via the webcast. 
 

44. MINUTES. 

It was moved by the Chairman, seconded by Mr Liquorish and carried:- 
 
“That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 2nd December 2015, 
copies of which have been circulated to members, be taken as read, 
confirmed and signed.” 
 
 

45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to make declarations of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
All members who were members of District and Borough Councils declared a 
personal interest in relation to the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016 -

4



2020 and the notice of motion concerning unitary status. 
 

46. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 7(1)(2) AND (5). 

(A) Mr Sharp asked the following question of the Leader or his 
nominee:- 

 
“A recent resident letter to the Loughborough Echo criticised the ‘waste and 
duplication’ involved in having an ‘outdated middle tier of local government’ 
implying that Councillors were complicit in its continuation. 
 
For complete transparency, could the Leader confirm:- 
 
1. By Group, how many existing County Councillors are also registered 

as District/Borough Councillors? 
 
2. How many of the seven District Leaders are also County Councillors? 
 
3. How many of the seven District Leaders are also members of the 

County Council Cabinet?” 
 
Mr Rushton replied as follows:- 
 
“1. 37 County Councillors are also members of District Councils of which 

21 are Conservative members, 12 Liberal Democrat members and 4 
Labour members. 

2. Four. 
3. Three.” 
 

47. REPORT OF THE CABINET. 

(a) Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 - 2019/2020.   

 
(A) Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/17 to 2019/20 
 
It was moved by Mr Rhodes and seconded by Mr Houseman:- 
 
“(a) That subject to the items below, approval be given to the MTFS which 

incorporates the recommended revenue budget for 2016/17 totalling 
£345.3m as set out in Appendices A, B and D of the report and 
includes the growth and savings for that year as set out in Appendix C;  

 
(b) That approval be given to the projected provisional revenue budgets 

for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20, set out in Appendix B to the report, 
including the growth and savings for those years as set out in 
Appendix C thereto and to the undertaking of such preliminary work, 
including consultation and equality impact assessments, as may be 
necessary towards achieving the savings specified for those years 
including corporate savings under development;  

 
(c) That approval is given to the early achievement of savings that are 

included in the MTFS, as may be necessary, along with associated 

5



investment costs, subject to the Director of Finance agreeing to 
funding being available; 

 
(d) That the level of earmarked funds as set out in Appendix I be noted 

and the use of earmarked funds be approved;  
 
(e) That the amounts of the County Council's Council Tax for each band 

of dwelling and the precept payable by each billing authority for 
2016/17 be as set out in Appendix J (including the adult social care 
precept, 2%); 

 
(f) That the Chief Executive be authorised to issue the necessary 

precepts to billing authorities in accordance with the budget 
requirement above and the tax base notified by the District Councils, 
and to take any other action which may be necessary to give effect to 
the precepts;  

 
(g) That approval be given to the 2016/17 – 2019/20 capital programme 

as set out in Appendix E; 
 
(h) That the financial indicators required under the Prudential Code 

included in Appendix K, Annex 2 be noted and that the following limits 
be approved:-  

 
 
(i) That the Director of Finance be authorised to effect movement within 

the authorised limit for external debt between borrowing and other 
long term liabilities;  

 
(j) That the following borrowing limits be approved for the period 2016/17 

to 2019/20: 
 

(i) Upper limit on fixed interest exposures 100% 
(ii) Upper limit on variable rate exposures 50% 
(iii) Maturity of borrowing:- 

 

 2016/17 
£m 

2017/18 
£m 

2018/19 
£m 

2019/20 
£m 

Operational boundary for 
external debt  

    

i) Borrowing 274.6 264.6 264.1 263.6 

ii)  Other long term liabilities 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 

TOTAL 276.0 265.9 265.4 264.8 

     
Authorised limit for external 
debt  

    

i)  Borrowing 284.6 274.6 274.1 273.6 
ii)  Other long term liabilities 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 

TOTAL 286.0 275.9 275.4 274.8 

6



 
(k) That the Director of Finance be authorised to enter into such loans or 

undertake such arrangements as necessary to finance capital 
payments in 2016/17, subject to the prudential limits in Appendix K;  

 
(l) That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the Annual 

Investment Strategy for 2016/17, as set out in Appendix K, be 
approved including the following:-  

 
(i) The Treasury Management Policy Statement, Appendix K; 

Annex 4 
(ii) The Annual Statement of Annual Minimum Revenue as set out 

in Appendix K, Annex 1;   
 
(m) That approval is given to the Risk Management Policy and Strategy 

(Appendix G) subject to consideration by the Corporate Governance 
Committee on 19th February 2016 and that the Director of Finance be 
authorised to make amendments if necessary following consideration 
by the Corporate Governance Committee;  

 
(n) That the Capital Strategy (Appendix F) and Earmarked Funds Policy 

(Appendix H) to this report be approved; 
 
(o) That the Director of Corporate Resources following consultation with 

the Cabinet Lead Member for Resources be authorised to prepare and 
approve a separate Efficiency Plan, if specifically required by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) to accept 
a 4 year settlement.” 

 
The Chairman indicated that a named vote would be recorded, as required 
by Government Regulations. 
 
The vote was recorded as follows:- 
 
For the motion 
Mr Bentley, Mr Blunt, Mrs Camamile, Mr Coxon, Mrs Dickinson, Dr Feltham,  
Mr Hampson, Mr Hart, Mr Houseman, Mr Jennings, Mr Kershaw, Mr Lewis,  
Mr Liquorish, Mr Orson, Mr Osborne, Mr O’Shea, Mr Ould, Mrs Page, Mr 
Pain, Mr Pearson, Mr Pendleton, Mrs Posnett, Mrs Radford, Mr Rhodes, Mrs 
Richards, Mr Richardson, Mr Rushton, Mr Shepherd, Mr Snartt, Mr White. 
 
Against the motion 
Mr Bill, Mr Boulter, Mr Bray, Mr Charlesworth, Dr Eynon, Mrs Fox, Mr Galton,  
Mr Gamble, Mr Hunt, Mr Kaufman, Ms Knaggs, Mrs Loydall, Mr Lynch,  
Mr Mullaney, Ms Newton, Mr Sharp, Mr Sheahan, Mr Sprason, Miss 
Worman, Mr Wyatt, Mr Yates. 

 Upper Limit Lower Limit 
 % % 
Under 12 months 30 0 
12 months and within 24 months 30 0 
24 months and within 5 years 50 0 
5 years and within 10 years 70 0 
10 years and above 100 25 

7



 
The motion was put and carried, 30 members voting for the motion and 21 
against. 
 

48. TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING NOTICE OF MOTION:- 

(a) Local Government Reorganisation: Unitary Status.   

 
It was moved by Mr Sharp, and seconded by Mr Hunt:- 
 
“(a) That this Council notes:- 
 

(i) the significant financial pressures facing the County Council 
and District Councils in Leicestershire; 

(ii) a recent report commissioned by the County Council from 
consultants, Ernst and Young, highlighted the opportunities for 
making significant savings by moving to a unitary form of 
government which could be used to support frontline services to 
the public; 

(iii) a change in attitude within Central Government on the issue of 
local government reorganisation as evidenced by the provisions 
included in the Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill. 

 
(b) That this Council believes that notwithstanding the establishment of a 

Combined Authority for Leicester and Leicestershire, a development to 
be welcomed, the time is now right for a fundamental review of the two 
tier local authority structures in Leicestershire on the basis that such 
review should be undertaken with no predicated outcome as to the 
number of unitary authorities but that the new structure should aim to:- 

 
(i) deliver a saving of at least £20million per annum after taking 

into account transition costs; 
(ii) provide strong, effective and accountable strategic leadership; 
(iii) better engage with local communities in Leicestershire. 

 
(c) This Council therefore calls on the Leader of the County Council to:- 
 

(i) engage independent consultants to consider and prepare 
options and full business cases for new governance 
arrangements in Leicestershire which meets the aims outlined 
in b) (i) (ii) and (iii) above and to commit to engage and work 
with the independent consultants to deliver their report for 
public consultation by the end of the 2016; 

(ii) seek support for a full engagement with the Governance review 
from the Leaders of the seven district councils in Leicestershire;  

(iii) lobby Leicestershire MPs to seek their early support for the 
Governance review and its aims.” 

 
An amendment was moved by Mr Rushton, and seconded by Mr White:- 
 
“That parts (b) and (c) of the motion be deleted and the following be inserted 
in its place:- 

8



 
‘(b) That the County Council, whilst recognising and accepting part (a) of 

the motion:- 
 
 (i) believes that the Government would only give serious 

consideration to a proposal for a reorganisation of local 
government in Leicestershire if it were supported by at least a 
majority of the County and District Councils; 

 
 (ii) believes that such a majority does not exist and therefore there 

is nothing to be gained by pursuing a proposal at the present 
time, which would in any event destabilise the good 
relationships which have enabled the Leicester and 
Leicestershire Combined Authority and Devolution Deal bid to 
proceed.’ ” 

 
The amendment was put and carried, 30 members voting for the amendment 
and 20 against. 
 
The substantive motion was put and carried. 
 
 
 
2.30 pm – 4.51 pm CHAIRMAN 
17 February 2016 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 

 

A. PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2016/17 

 
 

Introduction 
 
1. This report concerns the Council’s proposed Pay Policy Statement 2016/17. 

 
 
Background 

 
2. Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities in England and 

Wales to produce a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year, which must 
be approved by full Council. 

 
3. This statement must set out the Council’s policies in relation to: 

 
a) The remuneration of its Chief Officers; 

 
b) The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees; and 

 
c) The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and the 

remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers. 
 

4. For the purposes of this statement, remuneration includes basic salary, 
bonuses and other allowances or entitlements related to employment.  

 
5. The Council is required to publish the Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 on or 

before 1st April 2016. 
 
 

Key Points 
 
6. The proposed Pay Policy Statement which is attached as Appendix A to this 

report sets out:-  
 

a) The Council’s approach to job evaluation and grading of posts;  
 

b) Additional payments that employees are eligible to receive, such as night 
enhancement, overtime, etc.;  
 

c) The Council’s pay multiple (the ratio between the highest paid employee 
and the median average salary of the Council’s workforce (excluding 
schools but including the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation 
(ESPO)), is 7.84;  
 

d) That there is no distinction between chief officers and other employees in 
relation to pension entitlements and severance payments. 

 
 

Agenda Item 6a11



Consideration by Employment Committee 
 
7. The Employment Committee noted that the government had recently 

consulted on a proposed £95,000 severance cap and the potential pay back 
of severance to staff paid over £80,000 should they be re-employed in the 
public sector within 12 months. Should the government decide to legislate on 
these proposals an in-year change to the Pay Policy would be required. 
  

8. The decision of the Employment Committee on 4th February, 2016 is set out in 
the motion which appears below. 

 
 

(Motion to be moved: 
 
That the County Council’s Pay Policy Statement 2016/17, attached as 
Appendix A to the report of the Employment Committee, be 
approved). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4th February, 2016       Mr J B Rhodes 
          Chairman 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to the meeting of the Employment 
Committee on 4th February, 2016 on Pay Policy Statement 2016/17. 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00000212/M00004524/AI00046761/$PayPolicyStatement201617.docA.ps.pdf 

 
 

 

 

12



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 1 of 11 

 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
 
Contents 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................... 1 
Scope ........................................................................................................................ 2 
Definitions ................................................................................................................. 2 
Pay and Grading Structure ...................................................................................... 3 
Remuneration on Appointment ............................................................................... 4 
Market Premia ........................................................................................................... 4 
Incremental Progression ......................................................................................... 4 
Additional Payments ................................................................................................ 5 
Other Allowances ..................................................................................................... 5 
Bonus Payments ...................................................................................................... 6 
Pension Benefits ...................................................................................................... 6 
Honoraria .................................................................................................................. 7 
Salary Protection ...................................................................................................... 7 
Severance Payments ............................................................................................... 7 
Re-Engagement of Employees ................................................................................ 8 
Publication and Access to Information .................................................................. 8 
Appendix A - Senior Management Remuneration 2014/2015 ............................... 9 
Appendix B - Pay and Grading Structure ............................................................. 11 
 

Purpose 
 
As a responsible employer Leicestershire County Council is committed to delivering 
a fair, equitable and transparent policy covering pay and other employee benefits 
which improves flexibility in delivering services and provides value for money. 
 
Within the framework of its terms and conditions of employment, the Council aims to 
develop and maintain appropriate pay systems and benefit packages to attract and 
retain motivated, flexible people who take responsibility, work as a team, improve 
performance and acquire new skills. 
 
This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policies relating to the pay of its 
workforce for the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017, in particular the:  
 

• Remuneration of chief officers; 
• Remuneration of the lowest-paid employees; 
• Relationship between the remuneration of chief officers and employees who 

are not chief officers.  
 
The statement meets the Council’s obligations under the Localism Act 2011 and will 
enable the elected members of the Council to make decisions on pay.   
  

APPENDIX A 

13



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 2 of 11 

The Council’s Pay Policy Statement will be agreed by Full Council before the 
beginning of each financial year and will then be published on the County Council’s 
website (Click here).  The statement may also be amended by Full Council during 
the course of the year if necessary. 
 

Scope 
 
This statement applies to all employees of Leicestershire County Council employed 
under the conditions of service of the following bodies: 
  

• National Joint Council for Local Government Services; 

• Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local Authorities; 

• Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives; 

• School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions (for Centrally Employed Teachers); 

• Soulbury Committee. 
 

It is not applicable to employees based in schools and colleges with delegated 
budgets. 
 

Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this Pay Policy Statement the following definitions will apply: 
 
Remuneration  
This includes three elements: 

• Basic salary; 

• Pension; 

• Any other allowances arising from employment. 
 
Chief Officers 
Under the Localism Act 2011 a Chief Officer is defined as: 

• The head of the Council’s paid service designated under section 4(1) of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989; 

• Its monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) of that Act;  

• A statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act;  

• A non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act;  

• A deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act. 
 

In Leicestershire County Council this definition would apply to the posts set out in 
Appendix A.  
 
Definition of a Day’s Pay 
The definition of a day’s pay is the hours worked on the day multiplied by the 
employee’s hourly rate of pay. 
 
Lowest Paid Employees 
This refers to employees on Grade 2, Pay Point 3.  This definition has been adopted 
as it is the lowest level of remuneration attached to a post within the Council.  The 

14



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 3 of 11 

lowest pay point value with effect from 1 April 2016 will be £7.20, which is the 
National Living Wage introduced by central government on that date.  
 

Pay and Grading Structure 
 
The grading of all posts in the Council, except Centrally Employed Teachers, is 
determined using the nationally recognised Hay Job Evaluation Scheme.  This is in 
order to ensure that all posts are graded and therefore rewarded financially through 
a fair and non-discriminatory process, that there is consistency in treatment between 
posts and that the Council complies with equal pay legislation.  The scheme is an 
analytical one that takes into consideration three key elements of a post: 
 

• Know How - the levels of knowledge, skill and experience (gained through 
work experience, education and training) which are required to perform the 
job successfully; 

• Problem Solving - the complexity of thinking required to perform the job 
when applying Know How; 

• Accountability - the impact the job has on the organisation and the 
constraints that the job holder has on acting independently. 

  
Part of the guidance from Hay when introducing the scheme was that there should 
be a 33.3% differential between the Chief Executive and the highest paid Chief 
Officer.   
 
Basic pay is paid in accordance with the evaluated grade of the post.  Each grade 
comprises a range of pay points.  A copy of the Council’s pay and grading structure 
is attached at Appendix B.  The introduction of the National Living Wage with effect 
from 1 April 2016 will impact on the value of the Council’s lowest pay grades and 
work is ongoing to address this. 
 
Annual pay awards for all employees except Centrally Employed Teachers and 
those employed on Soulbury Committee conditions will be agreed by Employment 
Committee having regard to any agreement reached by the relevant national 
negotiating bodies.  The current pay award for all employees up to and including 
Grade 17 follows the national award made by the National Joint Council for Local 
Government Employees and covers the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2016.  A 
pay award covering the same period has been agreed for employees on Joint 
Negotiating Committee (JNC) terms and conditions for Chief Officers, providing the 
substantive rate of pay is £99,999 or less.  No pay awards have been agreed beyond 
this period with any negotiating groups.   
 
Annual pay awards for centrally employed teachers and those on Soulbury 
Committee conditions will be in accordance with those agreed by the respective 
national bodies. 
 
Details of the national pay scales for Centrally Employed Teachers are available on 
the Department for Education’s website.  
 

15



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 4 of 11 

Details of senior management remuneration are published annually on the Council’s 
website as part of this Pay Policy Statement (Click here) and in the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts.  A copy of the information for 2013/2014 contained in the 
Pay Policy Statement is attached at Appendix A.   
 
The ‘pay multiple’ - the ratio between the highest paid full-time equivalent (FTE) 
salary (Grade 22) and the median average salary of the Council’s workforce - is 7.84 
(excluding schools). 
 

Remuneration on Appointment 
 
All employees are usually appointed to the minimum pay point applicable to the 
grade of the post.  If the employee is already being paid above the minimum pay 
point, managers have discretion in some circumstances to appoint to a higher pay 
point, subject to the maximum of the grade. 
 
Where it is necessary for a newly appointed employee to relocate in order to take up 
a post, the Council may make a contribution towards the reimbursement of relocation 
expenses in line with the Relocation Policy.  
 
Employment Committee are given the opportunity to consider salary packages over 
£100,000 before new posts are established and advertised. 
 

Market Premia 
 
There is provision for the award of market premia where a job has been evaluated 
under the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme and the resulting salary is proven to be out of 
step with the market rate for the job.  The award of market premia is subject to the 
agreement of the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Employment Committee.  If approved, market premia are awarded 
for a two year period.  Details of the scheme can be found in the Council’s Market 
Premia Policy and Procedure. 
 

Incremental Progression 
 
Centrally Employed Teachers  
A locally agreed Pay Policy for Centrally Employed Teachers is in place from April 
2014. 
 
Soulbury Employees 
Employees covered by the Soulbury Agreement are eligible to receive annual 
increments on 1st September each year until they reach the maximum for the grade 
of their job. 
 
Other Employees 
Subject to one year’s satisfactory service in the grade, employees are eligible to 
receive annual increments on 1st April each year until they reach the maximum pay 

16



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 5 of 11 

point for the grade of their job.  Where circumstances warrant, accelerated 
increments may be granted by a Chief Officer.   
 
Career Graded Posts 
Employees subject to career grade schemes will progress in line with the 
arrangements for that post. 
 

Additional Payments 
 
Employees are eligible to receive a flat-rate enhancement for working at night. 
 
Employees are eligible to receive enhancements for working on public holidays. 
 
Employees in posts graded 1-9 who work additional hours are eligible to receive 
payment at plain time rate for hours worked; employees in Grades 10-14 who work 
additional hours are not eligible to be paid, but may receive time off in lieu (other 
than in exceptional circumstances, as set out in the Council’s Flexible Working 
Policy); and for employees in Grades 15 and above, there is no entitlement to pay or 
time off in lieu for working additional hours.  Details of these provisions are set out in 
the Council’s Pay Arrangements Policy. 
 
Employees required to “sleep in” on the premises receive an allowance as agreed by 
the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 
 

Other Allowances 
 

All senior officers on grade 18 and above receive allowances as detailed in the 
Conditions of Service of the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local 
Authorities and the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives.  
However, where these conditions are silent, or do not cover an allowance or 
process, the Chief Executive and senior officers receive the same as those 
employees covered by the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 
 
A copy of the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions document can be found on the 
Department for Education’s website.  Copies of the conditions of service for all other 
employees covered by this statement can be requested from the Local Government 
Employers.   
 
Professional Fees 
The Council reimburses annual registration or comparable fees to employees who 
are unable to practise their professions unless such fees are paid.  Professional fees 
are also paid to employees who are being sponsored to undertake training leading to 
a professional qualification.  However, once the qualification has been gained, the 
individual will become responsible for paying their own professional fees.  
 
The Council pays the annual subscription for Chief Officers to Societies of Chief 
Officers and similar organisations.  
 

17



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 6 of 11 

Car Allowances 
All posts, including Chief Officers, within Leicestershire County Council may claim 
mileage paid at HRMC rates for business travel.  The Council operates a lease car 
scheme which is open to employees who undertake business travel.  
 
First Aid Allowances 
Employees who are classified as a ‘designated first-aider’ are eligible to receive an 
allowance. 
All designated first-aiders (but not appointed persons) will receive an allowance of 
1% of the salary for pay point 7, pro rata to hours worked. The allowance will not be 
used in calculating any enhancements.  
 

Bonus Payments 
 
The Council does not pay any group of employees a bonus.   
 

Pension Benefits 
 
Centrally Employed Teachers 
All Centrally Employed Teachers are eligible to join the Teachers’ Pension Scheme.  
Employees within Leicestershire Youth Service and Leicestershire Adult Learning 
Service may also join if their role gives eligibility to join the scheme.   The scheme is 
a statutory scheme with contributions from employees and employers.  Details of the 
scheme can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme website. 
 
Other Employees 
All employees under the age of 75 are eligible to join the Local Government Pension 
Scheme.  The scheme is a statutory scheme with contributions from employees and 
employers.  Details of the scheme can be found on www.leics.gov.uk/pensions. 
 
The scheme allows for the exercise of discretion on the enhancement of retirement 
benefits.  The Council will consider each case on its merits, but has determined that 
its usual policy is not to enhance benefits for any of its employees. 
 
The scheme provides for flexible retirement.  To be eligible to request flexible 
retirement, the Council requires that an employee must either reduce their working 
hours by a minimum of 40% and/or be appointed to a post on a lower grade.  In 
applying this provision no distinction is made between employees.   
 
Under the Local Government Pension Scheme, employees who return to work after 
drawing their pension will not have their pension abated (i.e. reduced or suspended) 
except where they have been previously awarded “added years”. 
 
The Council does not award “added years” to employees and has not done so since 
2006.  
 
 
 

18



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 7 of 11 

Honoraria 
 
Subject to certain conditions, employees (excluding Centrally Employed Teachers) 
who are temporarily required to undertake some or all of the duties of a higher 
graded post are eligible to be paid an honorarium.  Details of the scheme can be 
found in the Council’s Honorarium and Acting-Up Policy and Procedure. 
 

Salary Protection 
 
Details of the Council’s salary protection provisions that apply to employees who are 
redeployed into a new post as a result of organisational change can be found in the 
Council’s Organisational Change Policy and Procedure.   
 
Details of the Council’s salary protection provisions that apply to employees whose 
post is downgraded as a result of a grading review can be found in the Council’s Job 
Evaluation Guidance. 
 
The provisions relating to safeguarding (pay protection) set out in the School 
Teachers Pay and Conditions Document apply to centrally employed teachers.  
Other Council employees are eligible to receive salary protection for a period of up to 
one year if they are redeployed into a lower-graded post, with the amount of 
protection depending on the difference between the grades of their former job and 
new job. 
 

Severance Payments 
 
Early Retirement (Efficiency of Service) 
The Local Government Pension Scheme allows employers certain discretionary 
powers but the Council’s usual policy is not to enhance pension benefits for any 
employee. Therefore, there are no provisions for employees to seek early retirement 
on the grounds of efficiency of the service. 
 
Redundancy 
The Council has a single redundancy scheme which applies to all employees.  
Redundancy payments are calculated in accordance with the Employment Rights 
Act 1996 and the 2006 Discretionary Compensation Regulations and are based on 
the employee’s age, length of continuous local government service and salary.  
Details of the redundancy scheme can be found in the Council’s Organisational 
Change Policy and Procedure. 
 
The Council does not provide any further payment to employees leaving the 
Council’s employment other than in respect of accrued annual leave.   
 
Employees who have TUPE transferred into the Council on redundancy terms which 
are more favourable than those detailed above will retain these provisions as per 
TUPE legislation. 
 

19



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 8 of 11 

In future, Full Council will be given the opportunity to vote on severance packages 
over £100,000 before they are approved. 
 

Re-Engagement of Employees 
 
Employees who have been made redundant are eligible to apply for vacancies which 
may arise after they have left the Council’s employment.  Any such applications will 
be considered together with those from other candidates and the best person 
appointed to the post.  Any necessary adjustments to pension would be made in 
accordance with the scheme regulations. 
 
Employees who are offered another post with any organisation covered by the 
Modification Order Act prior to their redundancy leaving date and commence this 
post within 4 weeks of that date are not eligible to receive their redundancy payment. 

 

Publication and Access to Information 
 

This Pay Policy Statement will be published on the Council’s website, together with 
the Council’s pay and grading structure and information relating to senior 
management remuneration.  

 
 

 

20



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 9 of 11 

Appendix A - Senior Management Remuneration 2014/2015 
 

The information below shows the total pay received by Senior Officers (as defined in 
the Localism Act) within the County Council for the financial year 2014/15.  It does 
not include Head Teachers. The figures include taxable benefits i.e. lease car 
payments made for these positions during the year 2014/15.  
 
All the jobs listed below have been ranked in terms of level of responsibility within a 
job evaluation framework applied to all County Council employees (excluding 
teaching staff). Rates of pay have then been determined with reference to market 
rates within similar local government authorities.  
 

Post title  Total Pay  

 £’000 

Chief Executive's Department 

Chief Executive  190 

County Solicitor  128 

Assistant Chief Executive  83 

Head of Planning  65 

Head of Regulatory Services (reduced working hours) 39 

Public Health 

Director of Public Health                                                                                 119 

Corporate Resources 

Director (Section 151 duties transferred to Assistant Director – 
Strategic Finance and Property, and reduced working hours) 

89 

Assistant Director - Strategic Information and Technology  90 

Head of East Midlands Shared Services  80 

Assistant Director – Corporate Services and Transformation  100 

Assistant Director - Strategic Finance and Property 100 

Assistant Director - Customer Services and Operations  90 

Children and Young People's Service 

Director  122 

Assistant Director Children’s Social Care 90 

Assistant Director Commissioning & Development 83 

Head of Supporting Leicestershire Families  71 

Assistant Director Education & Learning 83 

21



Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 
Version: 2016 - 2 
Agreed at:  
Date agreed:  
Review date:  

Page 10 of 11 

Adults and Communities 

Director  128 

Assistant Director Promoting Independence 90 

Assistant Director Strategy & Commissioning 90 

Assistant Director Personal Care & Support 90 

Environment and Transportation 

Director  116 

Assistant Director Highways 90 

Assistant Director Transportation  90 

Assistant Director Environment 90 

Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation 

Director  128 

Assistant Director (Finance) 76 

Assistant Director (Procurement & Compliance)  80 

Assistant Director (Operations)  75 

Assistant Director (Sales & Marketing)  77 

 

 
 

22



 

Pay Policy Statement v2016-1   
Last date amended:  
Date created:  
Review Date:  

Page 11 of 11 

Appendix B - Pay and Grading Structure  

Effective from 1st October 2015 

Grade Pay Point Annual Salary (£)  Grade Pay Point Annual Salary (£) 

There is no Grade 1     

    13 40 £38,349 

2 3 £13,611   41 £39,612 

3 4 £13,611   42 £40,941 

 5 £13,719   43 £42,366 

4 6 £13,869  14 44 £43,728 
 7 £14,094   45 £45,180 
 8 £14,514   46 £46,719 

5 9 £14,943   47 £48,381 
 10 £15,426  15 48 £49,950 
 11 £15,942   49 £51,603 

6 12 £16,338   50 £53,331 
 13 £16,764   51 £55,128 
 14 £17,193  16 52 £57,330 
 15 £17,649   53 £59,667 

7 16 £18,135   54 £62,166 
 17 £18,651   55 £64,935 
 18 £19,182  17 56 £67,815 
 19 £19,743   57 £70,836 

8 20 £20,319   58 £74,004 
 21 £20,913   59 £77,325 
 22 £21,532  18 60 £79,677 
 23 £22,212   61 £83,091 

9 24 £22,938   62 £86,637 
 25 £23,700   63 £90,351 
 26 £24,507  19 64 £99,657 
 27 £25,368   65 £102,204 

10 28 £26,319   66 £107,019 
 29 £27,336   67 £112,203 
 30 £28,404  20 68 £115,764 
 31 £29,562   69 £119,499 

11 32 £30,240   70 £123,447 
 33 £30,981   71 £127,689 
 34 £31,782  21 72 £125,523 
 35 £32,649   73 £131,298 

12 36 £33,660   74 £137,337 
 37 £34,737   75 £143,655 
 38 £35,883  22 76 £167,985 
 39 £37,128   77 £173,949 
     78 £180,213 
     79 £186,981 

 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 17 February 2016.
	6a Pay Policy Statement 2016/17.
	Appendix A - Pay Policy Statement 2016-17


